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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. Good

          3  morning. I apologize again for the delay. We are, as

          4  everybody knows, in the budget process, and try as

          5  we may on the Council, we just can't get the Mayor

          6  to understand the best way to look at this. And, so,

          7  we still have negotiations going on around the

          8  budget issues and what are the priorities that we

          9  want to establish for the City.

         10                 This is the hearing of the Consumer

         11  Affairs Committee. I'm Council Member Philip Reed. I

         12  chair this Committee. And we have also been joined

         13  today by several Committee members. Council Member

         14  John Liu from Queens, Oliver Koppell from the Bronx,

         15  Charles Barron from Brooklyn, and Council Member

         16  James Sanders, Jr., also from Queens, and the prime

         17  sponsor and author of this bill is with us, Council

         18  Member Clarke of Brooklyn, who will have an opening

         19  statement in just a moment. And Council Member

         20  Kendall Stewart also from Brooklyn has joined us.

         21                 Today we are going to be reviewing

         22  Intro. 367 in relation to the sale or purchase of

         23  products claiming to be, or contain an endangered or

         24  threatened species.

         25                 This is a new area of focus for our
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          2  Committee and it is one I find extremely important.

          3                 As New York City consumers, we are

          4  entitled to purchase reliable goods at fair prices

          5  with no fear of deception or fraud.

          6                 Moreover, we have the right to make

          7  informed purchasing decisions that communicate all

          8  values and priorities.

          9                 Intro. 367 addresses and reinforces

         10  both of these aspects of consumer life.

         11                 The bill makes it illegal to buy or

         12  sell products that are labeled or advertised as

         13  containing substances derived from a threatened or

         14  endangered species.

         15                 It also of course makes it illegal to

         16  buy or sell any animal described as endangered or

         17  threatened.

         18                 The bill establishes fairly stringent

         19  penalties for any violations.

         20                 Someone who buys or sells these items

         21  can be imprisoned for up to one year and fined

         22  $1,000.

         23                 In addition, they might face a civil

         24  penalty of up to $12,000 and may have the illegal

         25  goods seized. I would assume that to be sort of
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          2  automatic, they would take the illegal goods.

          3                 Not only does this legislation go far

          4  to protect endangered or threatened species, a point

          5  Council Member Clarke will address in a moment, it

          6  also underscores the importance of truthful

          7  advertising to consumers.

          8                 If consumers are armed with accurate

          9  representation of what is contained in the goods

         10  they purchase, they could make choices that advance

         11  specific interests.

         12                 In this case, once a consumer knows

         13  that a good is derived from a threatened or

         14  endangered species, he or she will know that it is

         15  illegal to purchase them.

         16                 I would also like to remind everyone

         17  that under the consumer protection law, visitors in

         18  New York are already required to advertise their

         19  products truthfully. If a merchant were to omit the

         20  fact that an item includes endangered species, in

         21  part of its advertizing, the Department of Consumer

         22  Affairs is able to prosecute and penalize.

         23                 Law-abiding merchants are then really

         24  only left with one choice: Stop advertising and

         25  selling any endangered or threatened species or
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          2  products that are contained.

          3                 I would also like now to give Council

          4  Member Clarke an opportunity to make a statement

          5  about her bill. Thank you very much.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I want to

          7  thank you, Mr. Chair, for your leadership with

          8  respect to this legislation.

          9                 I would like to also thank Mr. Craig

         10  Hoover of the World Wildlife Fund, who has been very

         11  supportive of Intro. 357. I want to say good morning

         12  to my colleagues, and to just say that we have come

         13  to a point in the City of New York where I think we

         14  can provide a very valuable service, in terms of

         15  educating and informing the public about being true

         16  custodians of our ecosystem.

         17                 Here in New York we have a unique

         18  dynamic in that, you know, everyone from across the

         19  globe will find a home here in New York City, and

         20  with that immigration comes various traditions,

         21  various customs, and often times we have not been as

         22  good as we could be about educating the communities

         23  that we serve about endangered and threatened

         24  species, and I think that what this legislation does

         25  is really propel us into the 21st century, in that
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          2  we exist in a society where we have already put laws

          3  on the books about threatened and endangered

          4  species, yet in a market like one in New York, a

          5  real undercurrent of lack of respect for that type

          6  of legislation is able to flourish.

          7                 What this legislation will do is

          8  close that loophole.

          9                 It creates a standard by which I

         10  think we can close loopholes that tend to be costly

         11  to law enforcement by addressing the issue of

         12  advertising, by addressing the issue of sale and

         13  purchase of not only goods that may contain

         14  endangered species, but also those who would speak

         15  to advertise pets that are considered to be

         16  endangered species, for instance walking into a pet

         17  shop and seeing a sign in the window that says we

         18  are selling Komodo dragons here today. It enables us

         19  to really clamp down on that type of activity,

         20  thereby sending a clear message throughout this City

         21  that we have zero tolerance for the use of products

         22  that endanger our ecosystem, the use of products

         23  that even threaten to endanger our ecosystem.

         24                 And I'd like to also point out that

         25  New York City is a dynamic City, and I don't think
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          2  there's any one particular community that we can

          3  point to and say that this is an ongoing blatant

          4  practice of that particular community. So, I take

          5  exception with anyone that would try to stereotype

          6  or to categorize any particular ethnicity or

          7  community with respect to this legislation, and I

          8  take real umbrage to that type of targeting of

          9  communities.

         10                 This is something that any community

         11  here in the City of New York can unknowingly or

         12  quite deliberately be involved in, which is the

         13  sale, the advertising of products that contain

         14  endangered species.

         15                 And let me just say that there is not

         16  one industry in particular that can be in violation

         17  of this. If you notice, today I decided to wear a

         18  scarf that has a print on it, and, you know, I'm

         19  being fashion forward here, because in New York City

         20  we are known for utilizing furs and things of that

         21  nature as part of our fashion set. But what I'm

         22  saying today is that we will not tolerate the use of

         23  the purchase of, the sale of, any endangered species

         24  here in New York City, and we will set the tone for

         25  cities around this nation, so that that trade
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          2  becomes a trade of the past.

          3                 I want to thank you so much, again,

          4  Mr. Chairman. I want to thank all of my colleagues

          5  for their support in this legislation today.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

          7  Member.

          8                 We have four people to testify. I

          9  don't see anybody who is not in favor of this bill.

         10                 We're going to hear from the

         11  Administration, Andrew Eiler, from Department of

         12  Consumer Affairs, and Susan Petito, from the Police

         13  Department. If you both would come up?

         14                 And then we have Craig Hoover. Not

         15  now, but I'm just saying the second panel is of

         16  Craig Hoover, from the World -- why can't I ever get

         17  that straight in my mind.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: World Wildlife

         19  Fund.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: World Wildlife

         21  Fund. Thank you, Council Member.

         22                 And Tom Leung, who was with us when

         23  we had our press conference, from the Association of

         24  Chinese Herbalist. And we're going to try to wrap

         25  this all up in record time. If for no other reason
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          2  than it's about 200 degrees in this room, so we're

          3  trying to work on, or the Council will be

          4  endangered.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: That's right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Term limits is bad

          7  enough, now they've got the heat on.

          8                 Please begin, Mr. Eiler.

          9                 MR. EILER: Good morning, Chairman

         10  Reed and members of the Committee. My name is Andrew

         11  Eiler. I am the Director of Legislation for the

         12  Department of Consumer Affairs.

         13                 Commissioner Dykstra asked me to

         14  thank you for this opportunity to comment on Intro.

         15  367 that would prohibit the sale of products

         16  containing substances derived from any species

         17  designated as endangered or threatened under New

         18  York Law or by the New York Secretary of State.

         19                 The commendable objective of this

         20  bill is to effectuate the existing ban on the ale of

         21  products containing substances derived from such

         22  species. It would do so by banning the sale or offer

         23  to sell, or the purchase, of any product that is

         24  identified as containing the substances derived from

         25  species designated as threatened or endangered.
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          2                 Anyone violating the ban would be

          3  subject to the criminal and civil penalties and the

          4  banned products would be seized and subject to

          5  forfeiture.

          6                 The Commissioner would also be

          7  authorized to adopt rules, and the commissioners of

          8  police and of environmental protection would be

          9  empowered to enforce the law.

         10                 The bill would plug a gap in the

         11  current ban on the sale of products containing

         12  substances from endangered species that is created

         13  by the government having to prove that the product

         14  in fact contains such substances, a requirement that

         15  is often a difficult, if not impossible, burden to

         16  meet.

         17                 By banning the sale of products that

         18  are expressly identified as containing substances

         19  derived from species designated as endangered or

         20  threatened, the proposal sidesteps the need to

         21  establish that a product in fact contains such

         22  substances. The claim that it does as expressed on

         23  the label or in advertizing would instead suffice.

         24                 We are, however, concerned that this

         25  innovative approach to strengthening the sales ban
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          2  may create other obstacles that will impede

          3  effective enforcement. Let me briefly outline the

          4  major ones without going over the technical details

          5  that would be involved.

          6                 One obstacle we see is that the

          7  endangered species from abroad are those covered

          8  under the US Endangered Species Act that the New

          9  York Secretary of State has identified from those

         10  listed by the Secretary of the Interior.

         11                 While those listings may be clear,

         12  the possible enforcement challenge the labeling

         13  poses is that a designated endangered species may

         14  not include all the populations in that species.

         15                 For example, while all tigers are

         16  designated as an endangered species, not all the

         17  populations of rhinos, musk deer or bear are

         18  considered endangered or threatened. All rhinos are

         19  considered endangered, except those identified as --

         20  (ceratotherium simum simum) --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We get the point.

         22                 MR. EILER: My Latin is kind of rusty

         23  here.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We'll leave it to

         25  the World Wildlife Federation to state that.
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          2                 MR. EILER: Okay, fine. -- Only musk

          3  deer inhabiting listed countries are considered

          4  endangered; and finally, only specified classes of

          5  bear species are considered endangered.

          6                 The sales ban based on product

          7  labeling is only workable if all populations of a

          8  designated species are endangered. Once any member

          9  of a species is excluded from the endangered or

         10  threatened category, the label that mentioned the

         11  species would not distinguish whether or not the

         12  product contained a substance derived from an

         13  endangered or threatened species.

         14                 A possible solution could be to

         15  require labeling that identified the animal

         16  population from which a substance is derived

         17  specifically enough to distinguish whether it

         18  belonged to those subspecies that are endangered.

         19                 This solution may, however, contains

         20  its own limitation, the likelihood that sellers

         21  would resort to false labeling that could not be

         22  discovered without scientific tests that established

         23  the actual animal source that may, however, be

         24  difficult if not impossible to perform.

         25                 Another possible obstacle we see that

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  poses an enforcement challenge is labeling in

          3  foreign languages, which raises a two-fold issue:

          4  One issue is the difficulty of correctly identifying

          5  that the labels in fact refer to endangered species,

          6  especially when the writing does not use the Latin

          7  alphabet.

          8                 The other issue is whether the

          9  designation in a foreign language means the same

         10  things as its English counterpart.

         11                 The more languages that are used in

         12  labeling, and the wider the range of writing

         13  characters, the more difficult it becomes to train

         14  inspectors to identify the banned products.

         15                 Last, but definitely not least, the

         16  Council is not making this offense hearable at DCA's

         17  administrative tribunal, as it has done in other

         18  instances such as sale of laser pointers and

         19  cigarettes to minors.

         20                 DCA would consequently be compelled

         21  to use prohibitively time-consuming and expensive

         22  court proceedings to adjudicate violations which

         23  erects the formidable barrier to effective

         24  enforcement. If the violation were, instead,

         25  hearable, and if the violations were found valid,
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          2  DCA could ensure that the offending business paid

          3  the price by imposing and collecting the appropriate

          4  fine.

          5                 There are also several provisions

          6  included in the bill that raise technical issues

          7  that would need to be addressed.

          8                 For example, the bill lacks the

          9  procedural requirements that would need to be

         10  followed to use the authority being conferred to

         11  seize goods. I am, however, confident that such

         12  technical issues can be resolved.

         13                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         14  to comment on the bill, and we will now be pleased

         15  to answer your questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         17                 Ms. Petito, do you have testimony?

         18                 MS. PETITO: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Eiler.

         21                 Ms. Petito, I'm sorry, you're here

         22  for the purpose of?

         23                 MS. PETITO: Answering any questions

         24  that you might have regarding the Police Department.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.
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          2                 Starting from the back forward, Mr.

          3  Eiler, we have gone over this issue of hearing

          4  authority with Department of Consumer Affairs

          5  several times, and there is legislation in effect

          6  now, laws on the books of the City of New York that

          7  you don't have the authority to have a hearing on;

          8  is that correct?

          9                 MR. EILER: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, you're not

         11  opposing this bill because in this particular

         12  instance it's one more thing that the Department of

         13  Consumer Affairs would have to actually take through

         14  the court process, right?

         15                 MR. EILER: No, we're just pointing

         16  out that --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're just

         18  pointing it out. You're not objecting to the bill

         19  per se.

         20                 MR. EILER: Right. In the absence of

         21  that, this would be -- the lack of hearing authority

         22  with regard to this, would be a deterrent, would be

         23  a formidable enforcement obstacle.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But that speaks to,

         25  and I really don't want to get stuck on this point,
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          2  while we're all trying to do our other

          3  responsibilities, but that is an issue that we have

          4  now spent three years on, in some form, at one

          5  point, if I remember, the Department of Consumer

          6  Affairs Commissioner didn't think she needed to

          7  speak to the Council about it, but that

          8  boomer-ranged, but now we're back to talking about

          9  it again.

         10                 So, you're not suggesting that the

         11  Administration would not lend its support to this

         12  until they had hearing authority, are you?

         13                 MR. EILER: No, I'm not tying it. I'm

         14  just saying that it's an obstacle to effective

         15  enforcement --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The only point I

         17  wanted to get on that question --

         18                 MR. EILER: That we're suggesting that

         19  if the bill were to be effectively enforced, one

         20  thing that needs to be added to it is specifically

         21  hearing authority with respect to enforcing this

         22  legislation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Correct.

         24                 MR. EILER: As the Council had done in

         25  other bills, like laser pointers, and when the
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          2  cigarette bill was passed, the Council included

          3  hearing authority, even though we were not

          4  licensing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, point well

          6  taken. And if you'd like to ask the Commissioner to

          7  reach out to us, we may revisit the issue on hearing

          8  authority.

          9                 MR. EILER: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we haven't

         11  been asked.

         12                 MR. EILER: Well --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: To do that.

         14                 MR. EILER: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, if you want to

         16  get that point across to the Administration, we

         17  might entertain it.

         18                 MR. EILER: All right.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But on the

         20  substance of the bill, I think I understand the

         21  questions that you raised specifically to the

         22  language; how do we get around that now?

         23                 I mean, there are products sold, both

         24  that are legal, and probably some that are illegal,

         25  that are posted in stores that you have your
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          2  inspectors go look at all the time, and how do they

          3  resolve the problem of language in those stores?

          4                 MR. EILER: Well, the innovative

          5  approach here is normally what happens is our false

          6  labeling and the consumer protection law addresses

          7  the issue when a product is represented to be

          8  something other than it is, and that is the

          9  objective. What we go after is, you're selling

         10  something different than what you're claiming, and

         11  that is the deception on a consumer.

         12                 Here the predicate of the bill is, if

         13  it is properly labeled, the sale of it is illegal.

         14  And because the ban is based upon the proper

         15  labeling, if it has rhino, well, then you can't sell

         16  it. So, it's kind of like a turn-around that

         17  labeling is effectively carrying the burden of

         18  becoming the ban for the sale of the product. So,

         19  it's not a deceptive labeling issue; it's properly

         20  labeled, then it becomes illegal to sell.

         21                 So, it kind of turns the situation

         22  around for us with what we normally do with

         23  labeling.

         24                 If it's correctly labeled, then, you

         25  know, it's no problem. And if it's --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A foreign language.

          3                 MR. EILER: If it's correctly labeled

          4  as a foreign language, it's perfectly fine. It would

          5  come to our attention if the foreign label, if the

          6  foreign language label were false, then it would be

          7  different, that's when we would get involved.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So the issue of the

          9  language being something other than English is

         10  really not an issue. A concern, it's not an issue.

         11                 MR. EILER: Well, it's an issue in the

         12  sense of an enforcement challenge, because we need

         13  to have inspectors trained in identifying characters

         14  that are different. You know, it doesn't have

         15  "tiger" on it, it has labeling in different

         16  characters and languages, and so that inspectors

         17  would have to be trained to identify the characters

         18  used to label a product.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't have

         20  those inspectors now?

         21                 MR. EILER: Well, we have some

         22  Chinese-speaking inspectors. We have some, I mean, I

         23  don't know how many different language inspectors we

         24  have who would be able to recognize characters. They

         25  would have to be trained.
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          2                 There would have to be specific

          3  training.

          4                 And the other thing is we don't

          5  usually go into the stores that would be selling

          6  these. These are not the kind of stores that we

          7  generally inspect. So, you would have to have

          8  specifically trained inspectors who would be taught

          9  to recognize labeling that is in different languages

         10  and mainly different things.

         11                 So, it's not a simple labeling thing

         12  that you go in and say this is labeled tightly and

         13  everybody can identify it, it's much more

         14  challenging and difficult.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Have you had

         16  complaints lodged with your agency about these

         17  issues?

         18                 MR. EILER: No.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: None whatsoever?

         20                 MR. EILER: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have any

         22  complaints registered for pet stores or people that

         23  would sell in general this kind of merchandise? Do

         24  we have a record of that?

         25                 MR. EILER: I'm not aware of. There's
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          2  a state store that deals with pet stores licensing

          3  law that we don't -- I mean, the only thing that we

          4  would come -- would be if there was some kind of

          5  deceptive warranty or some kind of deceptive

          6  practice. But I'm not aware of any -- I could check

          7  but I'm not aware of any --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It would seem hard

          9  to believe that a regular consumer having a problem

         10  at a pet store or places that sell musk oil, et

         11  cetera, et cetera, would know instinctively to call

         12  the State rather than to call the City Department of

         13  Consumer Affairs.

         14                 MR. EILER: The pet stores as a

         15  product complaint category, I'm not aware that this

         16  comes out as a specific category.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, we don't

         18  license pet stores now?

         19                 MR. EILER: No, we don't. We do not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is there a reason

         21  why we don't?

         22                 MR. EILER: I think the state does,

         23  and there is a state law dealing with pet warranties

         24  that the pet stores is deemed to have given for

         25  every animal that it sells, or animals that it
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          2  sells. But we don't have anything more to do with

          3  pet stores than general consumer protection law.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

          5  Clarke, you have some questions?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I guess my

          7  comment really has to do with the use of technology

          8  in being able to address some of the labeling

          9  concerns and the identification of I guess symbols

         10  or other riding characters that probably we're not

         11  familiar with.

         12                 I think that we could easily come up

         13  with a creative solution where certain characters

         14  are made available through technology or

         15  establishing a relationship with perhaps the World

         16  Wildlife Fund, that would help to facilitate that.

         17                 And, again, I want to caution us

         18  here, because the importance of this legislation

         19  should not be minimized.

         20                 There are many different groups

         21  coming from around the world, living here in the

         22  United States and living in New York City in

         23  particular, who come with varying customs and

         24  tradition, and if we focus in on one particular

         25  community, we may be missing a wider scope of other
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          2  individuals who were engaged in these practices,

          3  knowingly and unknowingly about the use of products

          4  that contained threatened or endangered species.

          5                 But I think that, you know, the

          6  training that you've identified as the challenge for

          7  the Department, that I think can be minimized, if we

          8  utilize technology.

          9                 I have a PDA and it gives me a little

         10  card with characters on it, so when I identify

         11  something on my PDA I have a reference card. Perhaps

         12  something like that could be made available to your

         13  inspectors?

         14                 MR. EILER: Well, I didn't say it was

         15  an insurmountable obstacle. I said, I mean it was a

         16  challenge and it requires some consideration, and

         17  there may be other things that the legislation could

         18  include that minimizes and mitigates the challenges.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are you finished,

         20  Council Member Clarke?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes, I am.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         23  Barron.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair.
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          2                 I just wanted to make  a quick

          3  comment and then go next door for my budget meeting.

          4                 I'm just concerned, and it's not on

          5  you because the labeling is Chinese and that's what

          6  you're dealing with. But it's more a question for

          7  you, hopefully we can deal with the traffic report,

          8  the singling out of the Chinese community and

          9  Chinese traditional medicine. In their report they

         10  single it out as the cause of this, you know, tigers

         11  being endangered, I think that's a bit much. I think

         12  most, and I talked to John Liu about it, most

         13  Chinese medicine is herbal, just like a lot of

         14  African and Caribbean medicine, I wouldn't want any

         15  community singled out like that as a cause of these

         16  endangered species.

         17                 We could have had a report that spoke

         18  to the problem and still had support of the bill

         19  without, I think, unfairly singling out the Chinese

         20  traditional medicine.

         21                 So, I just would like to, just on the

         22  record present my objection to that, and perhaps

         23  they can find better language to present the problem

         24  without singling a community as a reason for this

         25  occurrence.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BARRON: Your point is

          3  well taken, Council member. Thank you for raising

          4  it.

          5                 I think that I understand the

          6  concerns of the Department of Consumer Affairs has

          7  with this bill. I think that what we're trying to do

          8  makes sense. I don't want to be the Chair over

          9  something that ends up being law that's not

         10  workable.

         11                 So, we want to continue to work with

         12  you, discuss with you and the advocates ways to make

         13  this a practical piece. Whether it's also to post

         14  signs to make consumers more better educated when

         15  they're in the store of what they should be looking

         16  for, the questions that they may need to ask. There

         17  are I'm sure a lot of ways that we can get to this.

         18  But I think the fundamental thing that Council

         19  Member Clarke is trying to accomplish here is

         20  laudable. So, I look forward to working with the

         21  Administration.

         22                 Do you have another question, Council

         23  Member Clarke?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I just wanted

         25  to find out to what extent the NYPD is current
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          2  aiding on the state or federal level pertaining to

          3  the illegal sale of endangered or threatened

          4  species? What's the process we have in place here in

          5  the City.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: We are

          7  not aware of any --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. Petito, could

          9  you just, for the record identify yourself, please.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Susan

         11  Petito, Assistant Commissioner Intergovernmental

         12  Affairs, Police Department.

         13                 We're not aware of any joint

         14  operations or any targeting enforcement in enforcing

         15  the endangered species law. It's not something that

         16  is within the Police Department's natural expertise,

         17  and we've always relied on the federal government,

         18  and to some degree the State Department of

         19  Environmental Conservation to enforce those laws.

         20  But, of course, we would be willing to work

         21  cooperatively with them, as well as with Department

         22  of Consumer Affairs on local enforcement.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The question has

         24  been raised, when the tiger was in that apartment in

         25  Harlem, now the Police Department got involved with
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          2  that, correct?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          4  believe so, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And then turned

          6  this issue over to the federal government for

          7  endangered species, or the state?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I

          9  don't know the exact circumstances of that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That person was in

         11  violation of a lot of things, right?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't know the

         14  specifics, though.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER PETITO: I'm

         16  sorry, I don't.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: All right. Thank

         18  you both very much. I appreciate it.

         19                 Mr. Leung and Mr. Hoover.

         20                 We are, as many people know, having

         21  just our first hearing on this bill. We wanted to

         22  make sure that we got this introduced. We think it's

         23  important and timely. We will have a second hearing

         24  on this bill. So, if people have other questions and

         25  further testimony, we will take that today, but at
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          2  least we want it established and get it on the

          3  Consumer Affairs' calendar.

          4                 Thank you, both, for being here. I

          5  think we understand a lot of the issues, so if you

          6  want to paraphrase your testimony, or tell us the

          7  parts in here specifically that are issues that we

          8  have not addressed today, that would be terrific.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 Mr. Leung, Mr. Hoover, the World

         11  Wildlife Fund.

         12                 MR. HOOVER: That is correct, Mr.

         13  Chairman. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 First, I would like to make clear

         15  that no leopards were harmed in the making of

         16  Council Member Clarke's scarf.

         17                 Mr. Chairman, and members of the

         18  Committee, thank you for the opportunity to appear

         19  here today. I am Craig Hoover, Deputy Director of

         20  TRAFFIC North America, a joint program of World

         21  Wildlife Fund, and IUCN, the World's Conservation

         22  Union.

         23                 I'm here on behalf of TRAFFIC, the

         24  world's largest wildlife trade monitoring

         25  organization, and WWF, the largest private
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          2  conservation organization in the world, currently

          3  putting conservation efforts in more than 100

          4  countries.

          5                 The subject before us today is one

          6  that is near and dearest to my heart, as well as the

          7  mission of the organizations that I represent.

          8                 The Conservation of the world's

          9  endangered and threatened species.

         10                 I will focus my comments on the

         11  threat that illegal and unsustainable trade posed to

         12  the world's endangered species, and the efforts

         13  needed to effectively address that threat.

         14                 The world's wildlife species are

         15  faced with numerous threats to their survival,

         16  including habitat locks, pollution, competition from

         17  exotic species, poaching and other threats.

         18                 For many species, including many of

         19  the most recognized endangered species, the most

         20  significant threat to their survival is

         21  unsustainable removal from the wild to supply the

         22  demands of the world's consumers.

         23                 The demands for these species cover

         24  virtually all aspects of wildlife trade, including

         25  the demands for live animals, as pets and for
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          2  display. Wildlife products as tourists curios and

          3  jewelry, furs and wool used in clothing, animal and

          4  plant parts and derivatives used in traditional

          5  medicines, and meat and eggs consumed as delicacies.

          6                 In my written testimony I have

          7  provided a few examples of these specific demands to

          8  put this issue in context and explain why

          9  legislative action in New York City can have a

         10  positive impact on global wildlife conservation.

         11                 Given existing federal legislation

         12  covering endangered species trade, the obvious

         13  question is, aren't these activities already

         14  illegal? The answer is not as clear as it might

         15  seem. So, federal legislation, such as the US

         16  Endangered Species Act, makes illegal the

         17  international and interstate commerce of these

         18  pieces, it does not apply to sale within a state or

         19  city.

         20                 Further, even if a product is clearly

         21  labeled or marked as containing an endangered

         22  species, under existing federal law, the government

         23  bears the burden of proving that the product is

         24  actually derived from that species.

         25                 With packaged traditional medicines
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          2  in particular, this is difficult, if not impossible,

          3  to show.

          4                 The federal Rhino and Tiger Product

          5  Labeling Act sought to remedy these loopholes by

          6  making intrastate sale of products labeled to

          7  contain rhino or tiger illegal. But as its name

          8  applies, the law only extends to rhino and tigers,

          9  leaving a loophole for hundreds of other endangered

         10  and threatened species.

         11                 There is a vibrant and ongoing

         12  illegal in endangered species that find great

         13  profits and low likelihood of protection due to

         14  illegal loopholes and limited investigative

         15  resources at the federal and state levels.

         16                 Given these shortcomings, it is

         17  comparative that New York City have a legislative

         18  tool to fill those gaps.

         19                 We firmly believe that this bill

         20  meets an important need in the global effort to

         21  combat illegal wildlife trade.

         22                 We recognize, however, that

         23  additional legislation at any level is not in and of

         24  itself going to solve the problem. It is merely one

         25  step in the many faceted approach needed to address
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          2  illegal wildlife trade at every level, from the

          3  supplier countries and sellers to smugglers and

          4  retailers to the consumers.

          5                 World Wildlife Fund and TRAFFIC are

          6  committed to working at all of these levels in order

          7  to reduce the impacts of illegal trade on the

          8  world's endangered species.

          9                 In closing, I am pleased to lend the

         10  support of TRAFFIC and World Wildlife Fund to this

         11  important bill. We believe it can serve as an

         12  example to other cities and states where wildlife

         13  trade pushes endangered species toward the brink of

         14  extinction. We stand ready to help in any way we

         15  can.

         16                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         17  to appear before the Committees today. I would be

         18  happy to answer any questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         20                 Mr. Leung.

         21                 MR. LEUNG: Mr. Chairman, and members

         22  of the Committee, thank you for the opportunity to

         23  be here today.

         24                 My name is Thomas Leung. I am here

         25  today on behalf of the Association of Chinese
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          2  Herbalist of New York to show our support for the

          3  bill.

          4                 We agree that this proposed

          5  legislation will be a very effective piece of law

          6  enforcement tool to curtail sales of endangered or

          7  threatened species. And law enforcement is obviously

          8  an integral part of our overall conservation

          9  efforts.

         10                 However, I want to make very clear,

         11  so there be no mistakes, that this proposed

         12  legislation will have profound consequences on our

         13  community, if we do not have proper funding for

         14  education and outreach. They are paramount, and

         15  Craig Hoover of the WWF, World Wildlife Fund, and

         16  our organization, are in agreement on this issue.

         17  Behind any serious conservation effort, education

         18  and outreach must go hand-in-hand with effective law

         19  enforcement. One without the other, in my opinion is

         20  likely to fail.

         21                 On the surface, one may not realize

         22  the importance of education and outreach. It does

         23  not necessarily mean that we only spend money on

         24  educating the general public about the virtues and

         25  importance of preserving endangered species, that is
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          2  just a small part of it. We are all familiar with

          3  tigers, rhinos, musk deers, and we readily recognize

          4  them as endangered species. However, what about the

          5  not-so-obvious animals or botanical wildlife? Such

          6  as deer velvet, specific species of turtles and

          7  ginsengs. Yes, ginseng. Ginseng is a threatened

          8  species. So, someone in this chamber may be drinking

          9  a ginseng iced tea that contains a ginseng from an

         10  undeclared source. Is it from a state that has

         11  issued a proper permit in harvesting that ginseng?

         12  And how does the supermarket owner know and protect

         13  itself from when selling questionable products? Or

         14  what kind of paperwork would this supermarket need

         15  to keep, if indeed they are selling legal ginseng to

         16  ensure that they're in compliance of this new law.

         17                 This would affect countless number of

         18  establishments here in the City. Then there are

         19  lesser known threatened or endangered botanicals,

         20  what about them? Where would the convenience store

         21  owner get his or her answers?

         22                 Perhaps let's replace the ginseng

         23  example with bear's gallbladder, which is legal in

         24  some states. Hunters hunt them with a permit. How

         25  does a retail shop ensure itself that products
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          2  containing bear gallbladder is a legal source, or

          3  that a particular gallbladder is legal? Do these

          4  products have to be accompanied with permits? And

          5  how do the establishments verify the validity of

          6  these permits? These are real issues and not to be

          7  swept under a rug. So, it's much more complicated

          8  than just rhinos and tigers.

          9                 In closing, I'm here today to plea

         10  with the City Council to provide adequate funding

         11  for organizations such as the WWF so they can

         12  provide the necessary education and outreach here in

         13  the City of New York.

         14                 We need to set-up a line of

         15  communication with the community to assist that herb

         16  store owner in Flushing, to assist that supermarket

         17  owner in Brooklyn, to assist your local convenience

         18  store owner, namely your constituents, to answer

         19  these questions so they can be compliant of this new

         20  law, so they, too, can do the right thing.

         21                 It's my humble opinion, that when one

         22  knows what the right thing is, it's a whole lot

         23  easier to do the right thing. Let's help those who

         24  want to do the right thing and punish those who are

         25  in blatant disregard of it.
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          2                 So, along with this piece of

          3  legislation, funding for education and outreach is

          4  paramount in achieving objectives.

          5                 Thank you for your time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, thank you,

          7  both. And certainly thank you, not only for

          8  intriguing and important testimony, but for being

          9  brief and presenting it in a manageable way in this

         10  time constraint that we have today.

         11                 It seems, I clearly heard you, that

         12  there are other species that are endangered, and

         13  there's a whole category of species and herbs that

         14  are not listed as endangered, but what is it that

         15  makes the rhinos and the tigers such the preeminent

         16  sort of animals that are listed here, is it some

         17  specialist thing that people often times talk about

         18  as something medicinal?

         19                 MR. LEUNG: They are easily

         20  recognizable, first and foremost, and these are

         21  important animals that you see in the zoo, and

         22  people recognize and can easily lend their support

         23  to the conservation of these animals obviously. It

         24  would be much harder to get support if you wanted to

         25  save a plant, for example, that's obvious.
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          2                 Also, in traditional Chinese

          3  medicine, there's a history of using tiger parts and

          4  rhino horns in its history. So, tie that in together

          5  and you have the exploitations of that folklore part

          6  of the medicine, businesses exploit that aspect of

          7  it to market their product, those are more problems.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And this history

          9  goes back hundreds of years?

         10                 MR. LEUNG: Thousands of years.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thousands of years,

         12  okay.

         13                 MR. LEUNG: I want to make it clear

         14  for the record that modern TCM practitioners have

         15  this --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Modern TCM?

         17                 MR. LEUNG: Traditional Chinese

         18  Medicine.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         20                 MR. LEUNG: I'm sorry.

         21                 Modern traditional medicine

         22  practitioners, they know, they recognize endangered

         23  species, and even in China, I shouldn't say even in

         24  China, in China they recognize that, and the

         25  practitioners there are taught not to use these
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          2  products. So, it's been phased out.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Where do the

          4  traditional herbalists, people who practice Chinese

          5  medicine, where are they trained?

          6                 MR. LEUNG: A lot of the traditional

          7  TCM practitioners are trained here in the United

          8  States. As a matter of fact, we probably have more

          9  TCM -- domestically trained TCM practitioners here

         10  than non-educated abroad. We have accredited

         11  colleges, New York State Education Department of

         12  Accredited Colleges, such as Pacific College of New

         13  York, Tristate College of Acupuncture, and also

         14  Mercy College, Toro College, to my knowledge, at

         15  least 50 accredited colleges here in the United

         16  States that provide a degree in acupuncture and also

         17  Chinese medicine.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't have to

         19  have a degree to set up shop to sell these products,

         20  right?

         21                 MR. LEUNG: No, you do not have to,

         22  not in the State of New York.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And your

         24  organization represents?

         25                 MR. LEUNG: TCM practitioners, also
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          2  represent retailers, as well as wholesalers and

          3  importers, organization have a 30-year history, over

          4  300 members and includes every level of the

          5  community.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: All Chinese?

          7                 MR. LEUNG: Predominantly Chinese.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And they are

          9  adhering to requirements, even know they're not

         10  laws, even know they're not laws, in terms of proper

         11  labeling, and protecting endangered species?

         12                 MR. LEUNG: They are compliant of --

         13  well, I would say more obvious tigers and rhinos. As

         14  I have mentioned earlier, there are a lot of issues,

         15  like bear's gallbladder, or there are issues of

         16  ginseng that they want to be compliant of, but it's

         17  hard to get a straight answer from organizations

         18  such as US Fish and Wildlife. True story, we invited

         19  them to our banquet, and it was hard to get a

         20  straight answer from them whether bear's gallbladder

         21  was legal or illegal, and is it domestic, do you

         22  need a permit - it was very hard to get a straight

         23  answer.

         24                 As you know, there are state

         25  regulations, federal regulations, and there is
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          2  different species and one needs to be a zoologist to

          3  sift through all of that information.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How then would you

          5  expect the Department of Consumer Affairs to be able

          6  to sift through that in practical terms administer

          7  this bill?

          8                 MR. LEUNG: I don't have a solution

          9  here at hand right now, but I think that's something

         10  that's not insurmountable. I think that's something

         11  that can be done with cooperation with organizations

         12  such as WWF, perhaps our organization was familiar

         13  with TCM medicine. Also we discussed with Craig

         14  Hoover perhaps a certification program would really

         15  help in the conservation effort. You would force, or

         16  not force, a voluntary program where we can get

         17  importers or manufacturers, to get them certified by

         18  the WWF or an organization like that, where they can

         19  certify that what I have here is what it says on the

         20  label, is what is actually contained, and they're

         21  complying of the law.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And this is

         23  something that they could post in store windows so

         24  people knew that they were --

         25                 MR. LEUNG: Well, not--
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Or they are dealing

          3  with a certified herbologist or person that's

          4  certified in traditional Chinese medicine, and,

          5  therefore, has pledged not to use these endangered

          6  species?

          7                 MR. LEUNG: Well, it's two separate

          8  issues. I mean, I think more importantly the product

          9  itself. He product itself could be certified and can

         10  have a seal on the product, so that way the

         11  store-owner could put it on their shelf, the

         12  supermarket owner could put it on their shelf, would

         13  not have to worry about I'm not going to get hit

         14  with a fine on a botanical that I don't know about,

         15  or hasn't been updated. If it's been endorsed by an

         16  outside organization, I think that would solve a lot

         17  of problems. So that way the consumer has the

         18  confidence that, you know what? If I looked for that

         19  label, I'm doing the right thing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         21  Clarke has a few questions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chair. And I'd like to thank both gentlemen for

         24  coming with their testimony today, and I, you know,

         25  want to make sure that we're viewing this
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          2  legislation with a broad spectrum. Simply because,

          3  again, with New York City being a gateway for many

          4  immigrants coming from around the globe, I don't

          5  want us to focus in one area and thereby neglect

          6  other areas where the trade can't flourish,

          7  particularly with newer immigrants who come from

          8  nations where perhaps there are other traditional or

          9  cultural uses of products that, you know, we're not

         10  accustomed to necessarily or that fall outside of

         11  the purview of even the traditional Chinese

         12  medicine. So, I want us to be very clear on that

         13  piece.

         14                 But I'd like to ask, you know, we

         15  have to a certain degree focused in, and I guess

         16  it's because you're an organized community, what are

         17  the other industry, Craig, where we find sort of

         18  that seeping in of endangered and threatened

         19  species, and, you know, how do we identify that here

         20  in New York City?

         21                 MR. HOOVER: Thank you. There are a

         22  number of other areas of particular interest and

         23  I've given a few specific examples in my written

         24  testimony. One of them was a very interesting issue

         25  involving the trade in wool from the Tibetan
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          2  antelope in the Tibetan Plateau. To make a long

          3  story short, this is a species that's been

          4  prohibited in trade for quite a long period of time,

          5  and, yet, a large illegal trade remain. And in fact,

          6  there was a charity auction held at a hotel here in

          7  New York City where 300 shahtoosh shawls were sold

          8  to members of the public. Three-hundred shawls

          9  equaling about 1,500 Tibetan antelope, a species

         10  that was reduced from about a million animals to

         11  around 75,000 animals over the past 90 years or so.

         12  So, a very serious issue. There's the fashion

         13  industry, the skin trade, the wool trade, the fur

         14  trade, et cetera, there's been some discussion here

         15  today of the pet trade as well, and there is an

         16  example in my written testimony of a live reptile

         17  smuggling ring that involved a number of countries

         18  and a number of major reptile dealers sending

         19  animals here to the United States. You mentioned the

         20  Komodo dragons in your opening remarks, in fact,

         21  there were a few Komodo dragons involved in that

         22  case, those animals could sell for as much as

         23  $30,000 a piece here in the US.

         24                 And there are a number of other types

         25  of trade like that. And you mentioned other
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          2  communities, other countries, people coming here to

          3  New York City, and we're very much interested in

          4  looking into some of the other medicinal markets

          5  that are developing here in the United States and in

          6  New York City, as well, and we think that there are

          7  some issues that need to be addressed.

          8                 And I just want to touch on there

          9  have been several points made about identification

         10  issues, language issues, et cetera, and I just want

         11  to highlight that in fact there are a number of

         12  materials available already that would assist in

         13  enforcing that aspect of the law.

         14                 We have been involved in putting

         15  together an identification manual for traditional

         16  medicines. I wish I could certainly make available

         17  for the Department of Consumer Affairs other sort of

         18  cheat sheets that have particular sort of Chinese

         19  characters that could be learned fairly quickly. So,

         20  there are a number of materials out there that would

         21  ease in implementing this legislation here in New

         22  York.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I looked at

         24  your press release and it states that illegal sales

         25  of endangered species up in New York and down in San
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          2  Francisco. Did you, in your study, uncover some of

          3  what made that distinction, both being large

          4  immigrant communities, cities, and what it is that

          5  San Francisco did to bring down their legal sales,

          6  that perhaps we need to be looking at here in New

          7  York?

          8                 MR. HOOVER: Sure. I think there have

          9  been a couple of factors that have led to a decline,

         10  a significant decline in the availability of certain

         11  products in San Francisco, as opposed to New York.

         12  There has been some enforcement effort in San

         13  Francisco by the federal government recently, which

         14  I think may have had an impact. But perhaps more

         15  importantly we have been conducting outreach and

         16  education work in the Chinese community with our

         17  partner organization in San Francisco, the American

         18  College for Traditional Chinese Medicine. We've had

         19  an excellent and very collaborative relationship

         20  with the College of Traditional Chinese Medicine in

         21  San Francisco, and we feel that that has had an

         22  impact.

         23                 One reason we feel that way is

         24  because when we did our survey work, we actually

         25  talked with shop owners and we received a very
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          2  strong message from shop owners in San Francisco

          3  that when we asked for certain products, they would

          4  say that product is illegal, we're not allowed to

          5  sell it, here is an alternative. We never heard that

          6  in New York.

          7                 So, I agree, absolutely education and

          8  outreach work is instrumental in effectively dealing

          9  with this problem, and we fully intend to repeat our

         10  San Francisco effort here in New York and work with

         11  the Herbalist Association and others in New York

         12  City.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Finally, I

         14  just wanted to comment to Mr. Leung that I found

         15  your testimony to be excellent.

         16                 MR. LEUNG: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You hit on all

         18  of the salient points that when implementing public

         19  policy, it's really incumbent upon us to do, and so

         20  that I will be talking with my colleagues as we move

         21  forward with this legislation to make sure that

         22  there is a commensurate education funding and

         23  outreach effort that is put in place prior to the

         24  enactment of this law. And I want to thank both of

         25  you gentlemen for being a part of helping us to
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          2  really move this City into the 21st century, and

          3  also a continued dialogue about how we can utilize

          4  your knowledge, your base of knowledge, to help us

          5  as we move forward.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. HOOVER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I do, too. I also

          9  would like to thank you for the comprehensive

         10  testimony. You undoubtedly waded through the

         11  advocates that were on the people's steps today.

         12  Every one of them had a piece of paper in their hand

         13  educating people about their issue, and the

         14  importance of maintaining that funding. So, I would

         15  urge you, and I'm sure there are thousands of people

         16  here in this City that are very concerned about

         17  endangered species, the pet lobbyists, advocates,

         18  you know, you want to fill a Chamber, have an issue

         19  about pets.

         20                 So, I would encourage you to ask them

         21  to begin to get this issue on the elected officials

         22  radar screen, and to engage themselves, as you see

         23  so many activists out here, and an interesting thing

         24  is people don't really believe it all the time, but

         25  we read those pieces of paper because there are a

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  lot of interesting facts, and we didn't know this

          3  was being cut, a lot of what we're trying to get to

          4  today is discussions about, well, what about the

          5  program that says here this is going to be cut and

          6  so and so? But in order to get money for outreach

          7  and education, we have to see that because in the

          8  budget priorities, it's like, where should we put

          9  the limited funds that we have. So, I would

         10  encourage you.

         11                 That doesn't mean that we're not

         12  going to try to find some legislation carved out of

         13  this that's workable for the Department of Consumer

         14  Affairs. I can't in good conscience ask them to do

         15  something that's not workable. But I applaud the

         16  effort that you have in making this, putting the

         17  effort on the table here in New York. So, thank you

         18  very much. New York City specifically.

         19                 Thank you very much for being here

         20  today.

         21                 Seeing no one else here to testify on

         22  this bill, this meeting is adjourned. Thank you.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 1st day of June 2004.
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